

AGENDA ITEM 7

REPORT ON PENDING REGULATIONS: TITLE 16, DIVISION 39, CCR SECTION 4128, RETIRED STATUS AND SECTION 4130, FEES; SECTION 4170, ETHICAL STANDARDS OF PRACTICE; AND SECTION 4101, DELEGATION OF CERTAIN FUNCTIONS, SECTION 4146.5, EFFECTIVE DATES OF DECISIONS, SECTION 4147, DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES, AND SECTION 4147.5. UNIFORM STANDARDS RELATED TO SUBSTANCE ABUSE.

The Regulations Update report is attached for review.

REGULATIONS UPDATE REPORT

Pending Rulemaking files: *In-Process*

Rulemaking File Subject	Section(s)	Status	Close of public comment period	Date Pkg Sent to DCA	Date Pkg Rtn'd from DCA	Final Pkg Due to OAL	Actual Submit Date To OAL	Date language goes into effect
Disciplinary Guidelines & Uniform Standards	4101, 4146.5, 4147, 4147.5	Language published March 2013; adopted by Board at May 2013 meeting.	05/06/2013	9/24/2013		03/22/2014	06/17/2014	Estimate: 01/01/2015
Application Review of Appl. License renewal	4110, 4112, 4120, 4121, 4123, 4127*	Language published May 31, 2013; modified text noticed December 19, 2013; language considered by Board at meeting held February, 6, 2104 and May 15, 2014; second modified text noticed May 19, 2014. *(renumbered from section 4122)	07/29/2013 01/03/2014 06/03/2014	06/10/2014		06/14/2014 **		Estimate: 01/01/2015
Accept CHT for hands/PAMs approval	4151 4152	Language published December 20, 2013; language to be considered by Board at February 2014 meeting.	02/03/2014					
Continuing Competency	4161	Language published December 20, 2013; language to be considered by Board at February 2014 meeting.	02/03/2014					
Ethical Standards of Practice	4170	Language published December 20, 2013; language to be considered by Board at February 2014 meeting.	02/03/2014					

** Director to issue 90-day extension if rulemaking file approved.

REGULATIONS UPDATE REPORT

Pending Regulatory Amendments: Process Not Yet Started

Rulemaking File Subject	Section	Priority	Status	Comments
Fee Increases	4130	1		
Notification to Consumers	4171	4 2	Language previously approved by Board. Language publication date to be coordinated with May 22, 2014, meeting.	
Language for OT to request to supervise more than 2 OTAs	tbd		Implement BPC 2570.3(j)(2). Practice Committee to prepare/review language; draft language to be presented to the Board at Summer 2014 meeting.	
Patient record retention requirements when a business is closed/sold or if practitioner is no longer in private practice	tbd		Implement BPC 2570.185. Practice Committee to prepare/review language; draft language to be presented to the Board at Summer 2014 meeting.	

AGENDA ITEM 8

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING PROPOSED LEGISLATION.

The following bills attached for review:

- a) Assembly Bill (AB) 186, Professions and vocations: military spouses: temporary licenses
- b) AB 809 (Logue), Telehealth.
- c) AB 1758 (Patterson), Healing arts: initial license fees: proration.
- d) AB 1890 (Chau), Athletic Trainers.
- e) AB 2058 (Wilk), Open Meetings.
- f) AB 2102 (Ting), Licensees: data collection.
- g) AB 2165 (Patterson), Professions and vocations: licenses.
- h) AB 2396 (Bonta), Convictions: expungement: licenses.
- i) AB 2484 (Gordon), Healing arts: telehealth.
- j) Senate Bill (SB) 1215 (Hernandez), Healing arts licensees: referrals.
- k) SB 1256 (Mitchell), Medical services: credit.
- l) SB 1445 (Evans), Developmental Services: Regional Centers...Telehealth.



California

LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-186 Professions and vocations: military spouses: temporary licenses. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN SENATE MAY 29, 2014

AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 24, 2013

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 24, 2013

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 22, 2013

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 01, 2013

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 186

**Introduced by Assembly Member Maienschein
(Principal coauthor: Assembly Member Hagman)
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Chávez, Dahle, Donnelly, Beth Gaines, Garcia, Grove,
Harkey, Olsen, Patterson, and V. Manuel Pérez)
(Coauthors: Senators Fuller and Huff)**

January 28, 2013

An act to add Section 115.6 to the Business and Professions Code, relating to professions and vocations, and making an appropriation therefor.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 186, as amended, Maienschein. Professions and vocations: military spouses: temporary licenses.

Existing law provides for the licensure and regulation of various professions and vocations by boards within the Department of Consumer Affairs. Existing law provides for the issuance of reciprocal licenses in certain fields where the applicant, among other requirements, has a license to practice within that field in another jurisdiction, as specified. Existing law requires that the licensing fees imposed by certain boards within the department be deposited in funds that are continuously appropriated. Existing law requires a board within the department to expedite the licensure process for an applicant who holds a current license in another jurisdiction in the same profession or vocation and who supplies satisfactory evidence of being married to, or in a domestic partnership or other legal union with, an active duty member of the Armed Forces of the United States who is assigned to a duty station in California under official active duty military orders.

This bill would, in addition to the expedited licensure provisions described above, establish a temporary licensure process for an applicant who holds a current license in another jurisdiction, as specified, and who supplies satisfactory evidence of being married to, or in a domestic partnership or other legal union with, an active duty member of the Armed Forces of the United States who is assigned to a duty station in California

under official active duty military orders. The bill would require ~~the~~ a temporary license to expire 12 months after issuance, upon issuance of ~~the~~ an expedited license, or upon denial of the application for expedited licensure by the board, whichever occurs first.

~~This bill would require an applicant seeking a temporary license to submit an application to the board that includes a signed affidavit attesting to the fact that he or she meets all of the requirements for the temporary license and that the information submitted in the application is accurate, as specified. The bill would also require the application to include written verification from the applicant's original licensing jurisdiction stating that the applicant's license is in good standing. The bill would authorize a board to conduct an investigation of an applicant for purposes of denying or revoking a temporary license and would authorize a criminal background check as part of that investigation. The bill would require an applicant, upon request by a board, to furnish a full set of fingerprints for purposes of conducting the criminal background check.~~

~~This bill would prohibit a temporary license from being provided to any applicant who has committed an act in any jurisdiction that would have constituted grounds for denial, suspension, or revocation of the license at the time the act was committed. The bill would provide that a violation of the above described provision may be grounds for the denial or revocation of a temporary license. The bill would further prohibit a temporary license from being provided to any applicant who has been disciplined by a licensing entity in another jurisdiction, or is the subject of an unresolved complaint, review procedure, or disciplinary proceeding conducted by a licensing entity in another jurisdiction.~~

~~This bill would authorize the immediate termination of any temporary license to practice medicine upon a finding that the temporary licenseholder failed to meet any of the requirements described above or provided substantively inaccurate information that would affect his or her eligibility for temporary licensure. The bill would, upon termination of the license, require the board to issue a notice of termination requiring the temporary licenseholder to immediately cease the practice of medicine upon receipt.~~

This bill would require an applicant seeking a temporary license as a civil engineer, geotechnical engineer, structural engineer, land surveyor, professional geologist, professional geophysicist, certified engineering geologist, or certified hydrogeologist to successfully pass the appropriate California specific examination or examinations required for licensure in those respective professions by the Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists. The bill would also authorize a board to require an applicant to successfully pass an examination in jurisprudence or California law and ethics for the issuance of a temporary license if successfully passing the examination is a requirement for all applicants for full licensure.

~~This bill would exclude from these provisions the California Architects Board, the State Board of Chiropractic Examiners, or a board that has established a temporary licensing process before January 1, 2014 2014, from these provisions.~~

Because the bill would authorize the expenditure of continuously appropriated funds for a new purpose, the bill would make an appropriation.

Vote: majority Appropriation: yes Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 115.6 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

115.6. (a) A board within the department shall, after appropriate investigation, issue a temporary license to an applicant if he or she meets the requirements set forth in subdivision (c). The temporary license shall expire 12 months after issuance, upon issuance of an expedited license pursuant to Section 115.5, or upon denial of the application for expedited licensure by the board, whichever occurs first.

(b) The board may conduct an investigation of an applicant for purposes of denying or revoking a temporary license issued pursuant to this section. This investigation may include a criminal background check.

(c) An applicant seeking a temporary license pursuant to this section shall meet the following requirements:

(1) The applicant shall supply evidence satisfactory to the board that the applicant is married to, or in a domestic partnership or other legal union with, an active duty member of the Armed Forces of the United States who is assigned to a duty station in this state under official active duty military orders.

(2) The applicant shall hold a current license in another state, district, or territory of the United States in the profession or vocation for which he or she seeks a temporary license from the board.

(3) The applicant shall submit an application to the board that shall include a signed affidavit attesting to the fact that he or she meets all of the requirements for the temporary license and that the information submitted in the application is accurate, to the best of his or her knowledge. The application shall also include written verification from the applicant's original licensing jurisdiction stating that the applicant's license is in good standing in that jurisdiction.

(4) The applicant shall not have committed an act in any jurisdiction that would have constituted grounds for denial, suspension, or revocation of the license under this code at the time the act was committed. A violation of this paragraph may be grounds for the denial or revocation of a temporary license issued by the board.

(5) The applicant shall not have been disciplined by a licensing entity in another jurisdiction and shall not be the subject of an unresolved complaint, review procedure, or disciplinary proceeding conducted by a licensing entity in another jurisdiction.

(6) The applicant shall, upon request by a board, furnish a full set of fingerprints for purposes of conducting a criminal background check.

(d) A board may adopt regulations necessary to administer this section.

(e) A temporary license issued pursuant to this section for the practice of medicine may be immediately terminated upon a finding that the temporary licenseholder failed to meet any of the requirements described in subdivision (c) or provided substantively inaccurate information that would affect his or her eligibility for temporary licensure. Upon termination of the temporary license, the board shall issue a notice of termination that shall require the temporary licenseholder to immediately cease the practice of medicine upon receipt.

(f) An applicant seeking a temporary license as a civil engineer, geotechnical engineer, structural engineer, land surveyor, professional geologist, professional geophysicist, certified engineering geologist, or certified hydrogeologist pursuant to this section shall successfully pass the appropriate California specific examination or examinations required for licensure in those respective professions by the Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists.

(g) A board within the department may require an applicant to successfully pass an examination in jurisprudence or California law and ethics for the issuance of a temporary license pursuant to this section if successfully passing the examination is a requirement for all applicants for full licensure.

(h) This section shall not apply to the California Architects Board or the State Board of Chiropractic Examiners.

(f)

(i) This section shall not apply to a board that has established a temporary licensing process before January 1, 2014.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-809 Healing arts: telehealth. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN SENATE MAY 19, 2014
AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 25, 2013
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 29, 2013
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 03, 2013

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 809

**Introduced by Assembly Member Logue
(Coauthor: Senator Galgiani)**

February 21, 2013

An act to amend Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to telehealth, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect immediately.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 809, as amended, Logue. Healing arts: telehealth.

Existing law requires a health care provider, as defined, prior to the delivery of health care services via telehealth, as defined, to verbally inform the patient that telehealth may be used and obtain verbal consent from the patient for this use. Existing law also provides that failure to comply with this requirement constitutes unprofessional conduct.

This bill would require the health care provider initiating the use of telehealth at the originating site to obtain verbal or written consent from the patient for the use of telehealth, as specified. The bill would require that health care provider to document the consent in the patient's medical record and to transmit that documentation with the initiation of any telehealth to any distant site health care provider from whom telehealth is requested or obtained. The bill would require a distant site health care provider to either obtain confirmation of the patient's consent from the originating site provider or separately obtain and document consent from the patient about the use of telehealth, as specified. *record.*

This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute.

Vote: 2/3 Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: no Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code is amended to read:

2290.5. (a) For purposes of this division, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) "Asynchronous store and forward" means the transmission of a patient's medical information from an originating site to the health care provider at a distant site without the presence of the patient.

(2) "Distant site" means a site where a health care provider who provides health care services is located while providing these services via a telecommunications system.

(3) "Health care provider" means a person who is licensed under this division.

(4) "Originating site" means a site where a patient is located at the time health care services are provided via a telecommunications system or where the asynchronous store and forward service originates.

(5) "Synchronous interaction" means a real-time interaction between a patient and a health care provider located at a distant site.

(6) "Telehealth" means the mode of delivering health care services and public health via information and communication technologies to facilitate the diagnosis, consultation, treatment, education, care management, and self-management of a patient's health care while the patient is at the originating site and the health care provider is at a distant site. Telehealth facilitates patient self-management and caregiver support for patients and includes synchronous interactions and asynchronous store and forward transfers.

(b) Prior to the delivery of health care via telehealth, the health care provider initiating the use of telehealth at the originating site shall inform the patient about the use of telehealth and obtain verbal or written consent from the patient for the use of telehealth as an acceptable mode of delivering health care services and public health during a specified course of health care and treatment. The consent shall be documented in the patient's medical record, and the documentation shall be transmitted with the initiation of any telehealth for that specified course of health care and treatment to any distant site health care provider from whom telehealth is requested or obtained. A distant site health care provider shall either obtain confirmation of the patient's consent from the originating site provider or separately obtain and document consent from the patient about the use of telehealth as an acceptable mode of delivering health care services and public health during a specified course of health care and treatment. *record.*

(c) Nothing in this section shall preclude a patient from receiving in-person health care delivery services during a specified course of health care and treatment after agreeing to receive services via telehealth.

(d) The failure of a health care provider to comply with this section shall constitute unprofessional conduct. Section 2314 shall not apply to this section.

(e) This section shall not be construed to alter the scope of practice of any health care provider or authorize the delivery of health care services in a setting, or in a manner, not otherwise authorized by law.

(f) All laws regarding the confidentiality of health care information and a patient's rights to his or her medical information shall apply to telehealth interactions.

(g) This section shall not apply to a patient under the jurisdiction of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation or any other correctional facility.

(h) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law and for purposes of this section, the governing body of the hospital whose patients are receiving the telehealth services may grant privileges to, and verify and approve credentials for, providers of telehealth services based on its medical staff recommendations that rely on information provided by the distant-site hospital or telehealth entity, as described in Sections 482.12, 482.22, and 485.616 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

(2) By enacting this subdivision, it is the intent of the Legislature to authorize a hospital to grant privileges to, and verify and approve credentials for, providers of telehealth services as described in paragraph (1).

(3) For the purposes of this subdivision, "telehealth" shall include "telemedicine" as the term is referenced in Sections 482.12, 482.22, and 485.616 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

SEC. 2. This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or

safety within the meaning of Article IV of the Constitution and shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are:

In order to protect the health and safety of the public due to a lack of access to health care providers in rural and urban medically underserved areas of California, the increasing strain on existing providers—~~expected to occur~~ *that occurred* with the implementation of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, and the assistance that further implementation of telehealth can provide to help relieve these burdens, it is necessary for this act to take effect immediately.

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 27, 2014

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 3, 2014

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 20, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2013–14 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL**No. 1758****Introduced by Assembly Member Patterson**

February 14, 2014

An act to amend Sections 1724, 1944, 2435, 2538.57, ~~2570.16~~, 2688, 2987, 4842.5, 4905, 4970, and 5604 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to healing arts.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1758, as amended, Patterson. Healing arts: initial license fees: proration.

Existing law provides for the regulation and licensure of various professions and vocations. Existing law requires that licenses issued to certain licensees, including, among others, architects, acupuncturists, dental hygienists, dentists, occupational therapists, physical therapists, physicians and surgeons, psychologists, and veterinarians, expire at 12 ~~midnight~~ *a.m.* on either the last day of the birth month of the licensee or at 12 ~~midnight~~ *a.m.* of the legal birth date of the licensee during the ~~second~~ *2nd* year of a ~~two-year~~ *2-year* term if not renewed.

This bill would require that the fee for an initial temporary or permanent license, or an original license, as specified, imposed pursuant to these provisions be prorated on a monthly basis, *but would authorize a board or committee, as applicable, to impose an additional fee to cover the reasonable costs of issuing an initial or original license that expires in less than 12 months, as specified. The bill would limit the total amount of the prorated fee and the additional fee imposed for an initial or original license that expires in less than 12 months to 1/2 of the fee for an initial or original license, as specified.*

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. State-mandated local program: no.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

- P2 1 SECTION 1.
 2 Section 1724 of the *Business and Professions*
 3 *Code* is amended to read:
 4 1724.
 5 The amount of charges and fees for dentists licensed
 6 pursuant to this chapter shall be established by the board as is
 7 necessary for the purpose of carrying out the responsibilities
 8 required by this chapter as it relates to dentists, subject to the
 9 following limitations:
 (a) The fee for application for examination shall not exceed five
 hundred dollars (\$500).

19 (\$25). The fee for renewal of a branch office license is twenty-five
 20 dollars (\$25) for each renewal.

21 (f) The delinquency fee is twenty-five dollars (\$25).

22 (g) The fee for issuance of a replacement license is twenty-five
 23 dollars (\$25).

24 (h) The continuing education course approval application fee
 25 is fifty dollars (\$50).

26 (i) The fee for official certification of licensure is fifteen dollars
 27 (\$15).

28 SEC. 5.

Section 2570.16 of the *Business and Professions Code*
 29 is amended to read:

30 2570.16.

Initial license and renewal fees shall be established
 31 by the board in an amount that does not exceed ~~a ceiling of one~~
 32 hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per year. The initial license fee shall
 33 be prorated on a monthly basis. *The board may, however, with*
 34 *respect to an initial license that expires in less than 12 months,*
 35 *impose an additional fee sufficient to cover the reasonable costs*
 36 *of issuing the initial license if the board makes a determination in*
 37 *writing that the fee for the initial license is insufficient to cover*
 38 *the reasonable costs of issuing the initial license and that the*
 39 *additional fee is necessary to cover those costs. The total amount*
 40 *of the prorated initial license fee and any additional fee imposed*
 P10 1 *by the board pursuant to this section, excluding the fees described*
 2 *in subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, for an initial license that*
 3 *expires in less than 12 months shall not exceed seventy-five dollars*
 4 *(\$75). The board shall establish the following additional fees:*

5 (a) An application fee not to exceed fifty dollars (\$50).

6 (b) A late renewal fee as provided for in Section 2570.10.

7 (c) A limited permit fee.

8 (d) A fee to collect fingerprints for criminal history record
 9 checks.

10 SEC. 6.

Section 2688 of the *Business and Professions Code* is
 11 amended to read:

12 2688.

The amount of fees assessed in connection with licenses
 13 issued under this chapter is as follows:

14 (a) (1) The fee for an application for licensure as a physical
 15 therapist submitted to the board prior to March 1, 2009, shall be
 16 seventy-five dollars (\$75). The fee for an application submitted
 17 under Section 2653 to the board prior to March 1, 2009, shall be
 18 one hundred twenty-five dollars (\$125).

19 (2) The fee for an application for licensure as a physical therapist
 20 submitted to the board on or after March 1, 2009, shall be one
 21 hundred twenty-five dollars (\$125). The fee for an application
 22 submitted under Section 2653 to the board on or after March 1,
 23 2009, shall be two hundred dollars (\$200).

24 (3) Notwithstanding paragraphs (1) and (2), the board may
 25 decrease or increase the amount of an application fee under this
 26 subdivision to an amount that does not exceed the cost of
 27 administering the application process, but in no event shall the
 28 application fee amount exceed three hundred dollars (\$300).

29 (b) The examination and reexamination fees for the physical
 30 therapist examination, physical therapist assistant examination,



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-1890 Athletic trainers. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 13, 2014

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 28, 2014

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 21, 2014

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 10, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 1890

Introduced by Assembly Member Chau

February 19, 2014

An act to add Chapter 2.7 (commencing with Section 18898) to Division 8 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to athletic trainers.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1890, as amended, Chau. Athletic trainers.

Existing law provides for the regulation of various professions and vocations, including those of an athlete agent.

This bill would make it unlawful for any person to hold himself or herself out as an athletic trainer or a certified athletic trainer, or to use specified terms to imply or suggest that the person is an athletic trainer, unless he or she is certified by the Board of Certification, Inc., and has either graduated from a college or university, after completing an accredited athletic training education program, as specified, or completed eligibility requirements for certification by the Board of Certification, Inc., prior to January 1, 2004. The bill would make it an unfair business practice to use the title "athletic trainer," "certified athletic trainer," or other specified terms that imply or suggest that the person is an athletic trainer if he or she does not meet the requirements described above.

This bill, notwithstanding these provisions, would authorize a person who has ~~practiced athletic training~~ worked as an athletic trainer in California for a period of 20 consecutive years prior to January 1, 2015, and who is not otherwise eligible to use the title of "athletic trainer," to use that title.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: no Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 2.7 (commencing with Section 18898) is added to Division 8 of the Business and Professions Code, to read:

CHAPTER 2.7. Athletic Trainers

18898. (a) A person shall not hold himself or herself out to be an athletic trainer or a certified athletic trainer, or use the term "AT," "ATC," or "CAT" to imply or suggest that the person is an athletic trainer, unless he or she meets the following requirements:

(1) He or she has done either of the following:

(A) Graduated from a college or university after completing an athletic training education program accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Athletic Training Education, or its predecessors or successors.

(B) Completed eligibility requirements for certification by the Board of Certification, Inc., prior to January 1, 2004.

(2) He or she is certified by the Board of Certification, Inc.

(b) It is an unfair business practice within the meaning of Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 17200) of Part 2 of Division 7 for ~~any~~ a person to use the title of "athletic trainer," "certified athletic trainer" or any other term, such as "certified," "licensed," "registered," "AT," "ATC," or "CAT," that implies or suggests that the person is an athletic trainer, if he or she does not meet the requirements of subdivision (a).

18899. Notwithstanding Section 18898, a person who has ~~practiced athletic training~~ *worked as an athletic trainer* in California for a period of 20 consecutive years prior to January 1, 2015, and who is not otherwise eligible to use the title of "athletic trainer," may use the title "athletic trainer."



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-2058 Open meetings. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 09, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2058

Introduced by Assembly Member Wilk
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Hagman and Harkey)
~~(Coauthor: Senator DeSaulnier)~~(Coauthors: Senators DeSaulnier, Gaines, and Vidak)

February 20, 2014

An act to amend Section 11121 of the Government Code, relating to state government, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect immediately.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2058, as amended, Wilk. Open meetings.

The Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act requires that all meetings of a state body, as defined, be open and public and that all persons be permitted to attend and participate in any meeting of a state body, subject to certain conditions and exceptions.

This bill would modify the definition of "state body" to exclude an advisory body with less than 3 individuals, except for certain standing committees. ~~This bill would also make legislative findings and declarations in this regard.~~

This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute.

Vote: 2/3 Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

~~SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:~~

~~(a) The unpublished decision of the Third District Court of Appeals in *Funeral Security Plans v. State Board of Funeral Directors* (1994) 28 Cal. App.4th 1470 is an accurate reflection of legislative intent with respect to the applicability of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 (commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code) (Bagley-Keene Act) to a two-member standing advisory committee of a state body. A two-member standing committee of a state body, even if operating solely in an advisory capacity, already is a "state body," as defined in subdivision (d) of Section 11121 of the~~

~~Government Code, irrespective of its size, if a member of the state body sits on the committee and the committee receives funds from the state body. For this type of two member standing advisory committee, this bill is declaratory of existing law.~~

~~(b) A two member standing committee of a state body, even if operating solely in an advisory capacity, already is a "state body," as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 11121 of the Government Code, irrespective of its composition, if it exercises any authority of a state body delegated to it by that state body. For this type of two member standing advisory committee, this bill is declaratory of existing law.~~

~~(c) All two member standing advisory committees of a local body are subject to open meeting requirements under the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code) (Brown Act). It is the intent of the Legislature in this act to reconcile language in the Brown Act and Bagley Keene Act with respect to all two member standing advisory committees, including, but not limited to, those described in subdivisions (a) and (b).~~

SEC. 2. SECTION 1. Section 11121 of the Government Code is amended to read:

11121. As used in this article, "state body" means each of the following:

- (a) Every state board, or commission, or similar multimember body of the state that is created by statute or required by law to conduct official meetings and every commission created by executive order.
- (b) A board, commission, committee, or similar multimember body that exercises any authority of a state body delegated to it by that state body.
- (c) An advisory board, advisory commission, advisory committee, advisory subcommittee, or similar multimember advisory body of a state body, if created by formal action of the state body or of any member of the state body. ~~Advisory bodies~~ *An advisory body* created to consist of fewer than three individuals ~~is not a state body, except that a standing committees committee~~ of a state body, irrespective of ~~their~~ *its* composition, which ~~have~~ *has* a continuing subject matter jurisdiction, or a meeting schedule fixed by resolution, policies, bylaws, or formal action of a state body ~~are is a state bodies body~~ for the purposes of this chapter.
- (d) A board, commission, committee, or similar multimember body on which a member of a body that is a state body pursuant to this section serves in his or her official capacity as a representative of that state body and that is supported, in whole or in part, by funds provided by the state body, whether the multimember body is organized and operated by the state body or by a private corporation.

SEC. 3. SEC. 2. This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety within the meaning of Article IV of the Constitution and shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are:

In order to avoid unnecessary litigation and ensure the people's right to access of the meetings of public bodies pursuant to Section 3 of Article 1 of the California Constitution, it is necessary that act take effect immediately.



California

LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-2102 Licensees: data collection. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN SENATE JUNE 02, 2014
 AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 24, 2014
 AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 28, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2102

Introduced by Assembly Member Ting

February 20, 2014

An act to amend Section 2717 of, and to add Sections 2852.5, 3518.1, 3770.1, and 4506 to, the Business and Professions Code, relating to healing arts.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2102, as amended, Ting. Licensees: data collection.

Existing law requires the Board of Registered Nursing, the Physician Assistant Board, the Respiratory Care Board of California, and Board of Vocational Nursing and Psychiatric Technicians of the State of California to regulate and oversee the practice the healing arts within their respective jurisdictions.

This bill would require these boards to collect and report specific demographic data relating to its licensees, subject to a licensee's discretion to report his or her race or ethnicity, to Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development. The bill would require ~~the Board of Registered Nursing~~ *these boards* to collect this data at least biennially, ~~and would require those other boards to collect this data at the time~~ *times of both* issuing an initial license ~~or~~ *and issuing* a renewal license.

This bill would also delete ~~an obsolete provisions~~ *provision*.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares the following:

(a) The Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development prepares an annual report to the Legislature on the gaps in the health care workforce in California.

(b) The Employment Development Department's Labor Market Information Division and state licensing boards

share data with the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.

(c) All regulatory boards collect information about their licensees through the licensing process.

(d) California's regulated health professions collect information that is often limited and not always regularly updated.

(e) The information collected is inconsistent among the various regulatory agencies using different definitions and categories.

(f) The collection of demographic data on certain allied health professions will allow for the consistent determination of geographic areas in the state where there are shortages of health care workers with cultural and linguistic competency.

SEC. 2. Section 2717 of the Business and Professions Code is amended to read:

2717. (a) The board shall collect and analyze workforce data from its licensees for future workforce planning. The board may collect the data at the time of license renewal or from a scientifically selected random sample of its licensees. The board shall produce reports on the workforce data it collects, at a minimum, on a biennial basis. The board shall maintain the confidentiality of the information it receives from licensees under this section and shall only release information in an aggregate form that cannot be used to identify an individual. The workforce data collected by the board shall include, at a minimum, employment information such as hours of work, number of positions held, time spent in direct patient care, clinical practice area, type of employer, and work location. The data shall also include future work intentions, reasons for leaving or reentering nursing, job satisfaction ratings, and demographic data.

(b) Aggregate information collected pursuant to this section shall be placed on the board's Internet Web site.

(c) (1) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the board shall collect, at least biennially, *at the times of both issuing an initial license and issuing a renewal license*, all of the following data on nurses licensed under this chapter:

(A) Location of practice, *including city, county, and ZIP Code*.

(B) Race or ethnicity, subject to paragraph (3).

(C) Gender.

(D) Languages spoken.

(E) Educational background.

(2) The board shall annually provide the data collected pursuant to paragraph (1) to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in a manner directed by the office that allows for inclusion of the data into the annual report required by Section 128052 of the Health and Safety Code.

(3) A licensee may, but is not required to, report his or her race or ethnicity to the board.

(d) The board is authorized to expend the sum of one hundred forty-five thousand dollars (\$145,000) from the Board of Registered Nursing Fund in the Professions and Vocations Fund for the purpose of implementing this section.

SEC. 3. Section 2852.5 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

2852.5. (a) The board shall collect, *at least biennially*, at the ~~time~~ *times of both issuing an initial license or and issuing a renewal license*, all of the following data on vocational nurses licensed under this chapter:

(1) Location of practice, *including city, county, and ZIP Code*.

(2) Race or ethnicity, subject to subdivision (c).

(3) Gender.

(4) Languages spoken.

(5) Educational background.

(b) The board shall annually provide the data collected pursuant to subdivision (a) to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in a manner directed by the office that allows for inclusion of the data into the annual report required by Section 128052 of the Health and Safety Code.

(c) A licensee may, but is not required to, report his or her race or ethnicity to the board.

SEC. 4. Section 3518.1 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

3518.1. (a) The board shall collect, *at least biennially*, at the ~~time~~ *times* of *both* issuing an initial license ~~or~~ *and issuing* a renewal license, all of the following data on physician assistants licensed under this chapter:

(1) Location of practice, *including city, county, and ZIP Code*.

(2) Race or ethnicity, subject to subdivision (c).

(3) Gender.

(4) Languages spoken.

(5) Educational background.

(b) The board shall annually provide the data collected pursuant to subdivision (a) to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in a manner directed by the office that allows for inclusion of the data into the annual report required by Section 128052 of the Health and Safety Code.

(c) A licensee may, but is not required to, report his or her race or ethnicity to the board.

SEC. 5. Section 3770.1 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

3770.1. (a) The board shall collect, *at least biennially*, at the ~~time~~ *times* of *both* issuing an initial license ~~or~~ *and issuing* a renewal license, all of the following data on respiratory therapists licensed under this chapter:

(1) Location of practice, *including city, county, and ZIP Code*.

(2) Race or ethnicity, subject to subdivision (c).

(3) Gender.

(4) Languages spoken.

(5) Educational background.

(b) The board shall annually provide the data collected pursuant to subdivision (a) to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in a manner directed by the office that allows for inclusion of the data into the annual report required by Section 128052 of the Health and Safety Code.

(c) A licensee may, but is not required to, report his or her race or ethnicity to the board.

SEC. 6. Section 4506 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

4506. (a) The board shall collect, *at least biennially*, at the ~~time~~ *times* of *both* issuing an initial license ~~or~~ *and issuing* a renewal license, all of the following data on psychiatric technicians licensed under this chapter:

(1) Location of practice, *including city, county, and ZIP Code*.

(2) Race or ethnicity, subject to subdivision (c).

(3) Gender.

(4) Languages spoken.

(5) Educational background.

(b) The board shall annually provide the data collected pursuant to subdivision (a) to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development in a manner directed by the office that allows for inclusion of the data into

the annual report required by Section 128052 of the Health and Safety Code.

(c) A licensee may, but is not required to, report his or her race or ethnicity to the board.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-2165 Professions and vocations: licenses. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 10, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2165

Introduced by Assembly Member Patterson

February 20, 2014

An act to add Section 101.8 to the Business and Professions Code, relating to ~~licensing~~ *professions and vocations*.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2165, as amended, Patterson. Professions and vocations: licenses.

Under existing law, boards within the Department of Consumer Affairs license and regulate persons practicing various healing arts, professions, vocations, and businesses. Existing law requires these boards to establish eligibility and application requirements, including examinations, to license, certificate, or register each applicant who successfully satisfies applicable requirements.

This bill would require each board, *as defined*, to complete within 45 days the application review process with respect to each person who has filed with the board an application for issuance of a license, and to issue, within ~~that~~ *those* 45 days, a license to an applicant who *has* successfully satisfied all licensure requirements, *as specified*. The bill ~~would also require~~ *require* each board to offer each examination the board provides for ~~the applicant's passage of which is required for~~ licensure, a minimum of 6 times per year, *unless the board uses a national examination*. The bill *would also authorize a person who has satisfied the educational requirements of the licensing act of which he or she seeks licensure to immediately apply for and take the professional examination required for licensure regardless of whether his or her application for licensure is then pending with the board for which he or she seeks licensure*.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 101.8 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:

101.8. (a) Notwithstanding any other law, every board, as defined in Section 22, within 45 days following the filing date of an application with the board for issuance of a license, as defined in Section 23.7, to engage in the business or profession regulated by that board, the board shall do both of the following:

(1) Complete the application review process.

(2) If the applicant has satisfied all of the requirements for licensure under the applicable licensing act, issue the applicant the applicable license.

(b) For purposes of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a), an applicant has satisfied all of the requirements for licensure under the applicable licensing act only if all of the documents required by the licensing board for licensure have been submitted to the board, regardless of whether those documents are to be submitted by the applicant with his or her application or separately by any other person or entity, such as for purposes of, among other things, verification of completion of the applicant's coursework, training, or clinical experience, if required under the applicable licensing act.

~~(b)~~

(c) Every board that offers an examination that an applicant is required to complete successfully for licensure, shall offer that examination a minimum of six times per year, *unless the board uses a national examination.*

(d) Notwithstanding any other law, a person who has satisfied the educational requirements of the licensing act of which he or she seeks licensure, such as graduation from a state-approved or state-accredited school of which graduation is required by the applicable licensing act, may immediately apply for and take the professional examination required for licensure, regardless of whether his or her application for licensure is then pending with the board for which he or she seeks licensure.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-2396 Convictions: expungement: licenses. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 15, 2014
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 21, 2014
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 28, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2396

**Introduced by Assembly Member Bonta
(Coauthor: Assembly Member Skinner)**

February 21, 2014

An act to amend Section 480 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to expungement.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2396, as amended, Bonta. Convictions: expungement: licenses.

Existing law provides for the licensure and regulation of various professions and vocations by boards within the Department of Consumer Affairs. Existing law authorizes a board to deny, suspend, or revoke a license on various grounds, including, but not limited to, conviction of a crime if the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for which the license was issued. Existing law prohibits a board from denying a license on the ground that the applicant has committed a crime if the applicant shows that he or she obtained a certificate of rehabilitation in the case of a felony, or that he or she has met all applicable requirements of the criteria of rehabilitation developed by the board, as specified, in the case of a misdemeanor.

Existing law permits a defendant to withdraw his or her plea of guilty or plea of nolo contendere and enter a plea of not guilty in any case in which a defendant has fulfilled the conditions of probation for the entire period of probation, or has been discharged prior to the termination of the period of probation, or has been convicted of a misdemeanor and not granted probation and has fully complied with and performed the sentence of the court, or has been sentenced to a county jail for a felony, or in any other case in which a court, in its discretion and the interests of justice, determines that a defendant should be granted this or other specified relief and requires the defendant to be released from all penalties and disabilities resulting from the offense of which he or she has been convicted.

This bill would prohibit a board from denying a license based solely on a conviction that has been dismissed pursuant to the above provisions.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:**SECTION 1.** Section 480 of the Business and Professions Code is amended to read:

480. (a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the applicant has one of the following:

(1) Been convicted of a crime. A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to take following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code.

(2) Done any act involving dishonesty, fraud, or deceit with the intent to substantially benefit himself or herself or another, or substantially injure another.

(3) (A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license.

(B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only if the crime or act is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for which application is made.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, a person shall not be denied a license solely on the basis that he or she has been convicted of a felony if he or she has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation under Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 4852.01) of Title 6 of Part 3 of the Penal Code or that he or she has been convicted of a misdemeanor if he or she has met all applicable requirements of the criteria of rehabilitation developed by the board to evaluate the rehabilitation of a person when considering the denial of a license under subdivision (a) of Section 482.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this code, a person shall not be denied a license solely on the basis of a conviction that has been dismissed pursuant to Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code.

(d) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the ground that the applicant knowingly made a false statement of fact that is required to be revealed in the application for the license.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

AB-2484 Healing arts: telehealth. (2013-2014)

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL

No. 2484

Introduced by Assembly Member Gordon

February 21, 2014

An act to amend Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to telehealth.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2484, as introduced, Gordon. Healing arts: telehealth.

Existing law provides for the licensure and regulation of various healing arts professions by various boards within the Department of Consumer Affairs. A violation of specified provisions is a crime. Existing law defines telehealth for the purpose of its regulation and requires a health care provider, as defined, prior to the delivery of health care via telehealth, to verbally inform the patient that telehealth may be used and obtain verbal consent from the patient and to document that verbal consent in the patient's medical record.

This bill would alternatively allow a health care provider to obtain written consent from the patient before telehealth may be used and would require that written consent to be documented in the patient's medical record.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: no Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code is amended to read:

2290.5. (a) For purposes of this division, the following definitions shall apply:

- (1) "Asynchronous store and forward" means the transmission of a patient's medical information from an originating site to the health care provider at a distant site without the presence of the patient.
- (2) "Distant site" means a site where a health care provider who provides health care services is located while providing these services via a telecommunications system.
- (3) "Health care provider" means a person who is licensed under this division.
- (4) "Originating site" means a site where a patient is located at the time health care services are provided via a telecommunications system or where the asynchronous store and forward service originates.

(5) "Synchronous interaction" means a real-time interaction between a patient and a health care provider located at a distant site.

(6) "Telehealth" means the mode of delivering health care services and public health via information and communication technologies to facilitate the diagnosis, consultation, treatment, education, care management, and self-management of a patient's health care while the patient is at the originating site and the health care provider is at a distant site. Telehealth facilitates patient self-management and caregiver support for patients and includes synchronous interactions and asynchronous store and forward transfers.

(b) Prior to the delivery of health care via telehealth, the health care provider at the originating site shall verbally inform the patient that telehealth may be used and obtain verbal *or written* consent from the patient for this use. The verbal *or written* consent shall be documented in the patient's medical record.

(c) The failure of a health care provider to comply with this section shall constitute unprofessional conduct. Section 2314 shall not apply to this section.

(d) This section shall not be construed to alter the scope of practice of any health care provider or authorize the delivery of health care services in a setting, or in a manner, not otherwise authorized by law.

(e) All laws regarding the confidentiality of health care information and a patient's rights to his or her medical information shall apply to telehealth interactions.

(f) This section shall not apply to a patient under the jurisdiction of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation or any other correctional facility.

(g) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law and for purposes of this section, the governing body of the hospital whose patients are receiving the telehealth services may grant privileges to, and verify and approve credentials for, providers of telehealth services based on its medical staff recommendations that rely on information provided by the distant-site hospital or telehealth entity, as described in Sections 482.12, 482.22, and 485.616 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

(2) By enacting this subdivision, it is the intent of the Legislature to authorize a hospital to grant privileges to, and verify and approve credentials for, providers of telehealth services as described in paragraph (1).

(3) For the purposes of this subdivision, "telehealth" shall include "telemedicine" as the term is referenced in Sections 482.12, 482.22, and 485.616 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

SB-1215 Healing arts licensees: referrals. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 10, 2014

AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 24, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

SENATE BILL

No. 1215

Introduced by Senator Hernandez

February 20, 2014

An act to amend Section 650.02 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to healing arts.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

SB 1215, as amended, Hernandez. Healing arts licensees: referrals.

Existing law provides for the licensure and regulation of healing arts professionals by boards within the Department of Consumer Affairs. Existing law makes it a crime for licensed healing arts professionals to receive money or other consideration for, or to engage in various related activities with respect to, the referral of patients, clients, or customers to any person, with specified exceptions.

Existing law also makes it a crime for a licensed healing arts professional to refer patients for specified services if the licensee or his or her immediate family has a financial interest, as defined, with the person or entity. Existing law provides that, among other exceptions, this prohibition does not apply to services for a specific patient that are performed within, or goods that are supplied by, a licensee's office or the office of a group practice.

This bill would provide that this exception does not apply to advanced imaging, anatomic pathology, radiation therapy, or physical therapy for a specific patient that is performed within a licensee's office or the office of a group ~~practice~~. *practice and that is compensated on a fee-for-service basis. The bill would also define advanced imaging for this purpose.* By expanding the scope of a crime, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: yes

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(a) Recent studies by the Government Accountability Office (GAO) examining self-referral practices in advanced diagnostic imaging and anatomic pathology determined that financial incentives were the most likely cause of increases in self-referrals.

(b) For advanced diagnostic imaging, the GAO stated that "providers who self-referred made 400,000 more referrals for advanced imaging services than they would have if they were not self-referring," at a cost of "more than \$100 million" in 2010.

(c) For anatomic pathology, the GAO found that "self-referring providers likely referred over 918,000 more anatomic pathology services" than they would have if they were not self-referring, costing Medicare approximately \$69 million more in 2010 than if self-referral was not permitted.

(d) In November 2012, Bloomberg News released an investigative report that scrutinized ordeals faced by California prostate cancer patients treated by a urology clinic that owns radiation therapy equipment. The report found that physician self-referral resulted in a detrimental impact on patient care and drove up health care costs in the Medicare Program. The Wall Street Journal, the Washington Post, and the Baltimore Sun have also published investigations showing that urology groups owning radiation therapy machines have utilization rates that rise quickly and are well above national norms for radiation therapy treatment of prostate cancer.

SEC. 2. Section 650.02 of the Business and Professions Code is amended to read:

650.02. The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply to or restrict any of the following:

(a) A licensee may refer a patient for a good or service otherwise prohibited by subdivision (a) of Section 650.01 if the licensee's regular practice is located where there is no alternative provider of the service within either 25 miles or 40 minutes traveling time, via the shortest route on a paved road. If an alternative provider commences furnishing the good or service for which a patient was referred pursuant to this subdivision, the licensee shall cease referrals under this subdivision within six months of the time at which the licensee knew or should have known that the alternative provider is furnishing the good or service. A licensee who refers to or seeks consultation from an organization in which the licensee has a financial interest under this subdivision shall disclose this interest to the patient or the patient's parents or legal guardian in writing at the time of referral.

(b) A licensee, when the licensee or his or her immediate family has one or more of the following arrangements with another licensee, a person, or an entity, is not prohibited from referring a patient to the licensee, person, or entity because of the arrangement:

(1) A loan between a licensee and the recipient of the referral, if the loan has commercially reasonable terms, bears interest at the prime rate or a higher rate that does not constitute usury, is adequately secured, and the loan terms are not affected by either party's referral of any person or the volume of services provided by either party.

(2) A lease of space or equipment between a licensee and the recipient of the referral, if the lease is written, has commercially reasonable terms, has a fixed periodic rent payment, has a term of one year or more, and the lease payments are not affected by either party's referral of any person or the volume of services provided by either party.

(3) Ownership of corporate investment securities, including shares, bonds, or other debt instruments that may be purchased on terms generally available to the public and that are traded on a licensed securities exchange or NASDAQ, do not base profit distributions or other transfers of value on the licensee's referral of persons to the corporation, do not have a separate class or accounting for any persons or for any licensees who may refer persons to the corporation, and are in a corporation that had, at the end of the corporation's most recent fiscal year, or on average during the previous three fiscal years, stockholder equity exceeding seventy-five million dollars (\$75,000,000).

(4) Ownership of shares in a regulated investment company as defined in Section 851(a) of the federal Internal Revenue Code, if the company had, at the end of the company's most recent fiscal year, or on average during the previous three fiscal years, total assets exceeding seventy-five million dollars (\$75,000,000).

(5) A one-time sale or transfer of a practice or property or other financial interest between a licensee and the

recipient of the referral if the sale or transfer is for commercially reasonable terms and the consideration is not affected by either party's referral of any person or the volume of services provided by either party.

(6) A personal services arrangement between a licensee or an immediate family member of the licensee and the recipient of the referral if the arrangement meets all of the following requirements:

(A) It is set out in writing and is signed by the parties.

(B) It specifies all of the services to be provided by the licensee or an immediate family member of the licensee.

(C) The aggregate services contracted for do not exceed those that are reasonable and necessary for the legitimate business purposes of the arrangement.

(D) A person who is referred by a licensee or an immediate family member of the licensee is informed in writing of the personal services arrangement that includes information on where a person may go to file a complaint against the licensee or the immediate family member of the licensee.

(E) The term of the arrangement is for at least one year.

(F) The compensation to be paid over the term of the arrangement is set in advance, does not exceed fair market value, and is not determined in a manner that takes into account the volume or value of any referrals or other business generated between the parties.

(G) The services to be performed under the arrangement do not involve the counseling or promotion of a business arrangement or other activity that violates any state or federal law.

(c) (1) A licensee may refer a person to a health facility, as defined in Section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code, or to any facility owned or leased by a health facility, if the recipient of the referral does not compensate the licensee for the patient referral, and any equipment lease arrangement between the licensee and the referral recipient complies with the requirements of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b).

(2) Nothing shall preclude this subdivision from applying to a licensee solely because the licensee has an ownership or leasehold interest in an entire health facility or an entity that owns or leases an entire health facility.

(3) A licensee may refer a person to a health facility for any service classified as an emergency under subdivision (a) or (b) of Section 1317.1 of the Health and Safety Code.

(4) A licensee may refer a person to any organization that owns or leases a health facility licensed pursuant to subdivision (a), (b), or (f) of Section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code if the licensee is not compensated for the patient referral, the licensee does not receive any payment from the recipient of the referral that is based or determined on the number or value of any patient referrals, and any equipment lease arrangement between the licensee and the referral recipient complies with the requirements of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b). For purposes of this paragraph, the ownership may be through stock or membership, and may be represented by a parent holding company that solely owns or controls both the health facility organization and the affiliated organization.

(d) A licensee may refer a person to a nonprofit corporation that provides physician services pursuant to subdivision (l) of Section 1206 of the Health and Safety Code if the nonprofit corporation is controlled through membership by one or more health facilities or health facility systems and the amount of compensation or other transfer of funds from the health facility or nonprofit corporation to the licensee is fixed annually, except for adjustments caused by physicians joining or leaving the groups during the year, and is not based on the number of persons utilizing goods or services specified in Section 650.01.

(e) A licensee compensated or employed by a university may refer a person for a physician service, to any facility owned or operated by the university, or to another licensee employed by the university, provided that the facility or university does not compensate the referring licensee for the patient referral. In the case of a facility that is totally or partially owned by an entity other than the university, but that is staffed by university physicians, those physicians may not refer patients to the facility if the facility compensates the referring physicians for those referrals.

(f) (1) Except as specified in paragraph (2), the prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply to any service for

a specific patient that is performed within, or goods that are supplied by, a licensee's office, or the office of a group practice. Further, the provisions of Section 650.01 shall not alter, limit, or expand a licensee's ability to deliver, or to direct or supervise the delivery of, in-office goods or services according to the laws, rules, and regulations governing his or her scope of practice.

(2) (A) The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall apply to advanced imaging, anatomic pathology, radiation therapy, or physical therapy for a specific patient that is performed within a licensee's office or the office of a group practice. *practice and that is compensated on a fee-for-service basis.*

(B) *For purposes of this subdivision, "advanced imaging" means magnetic resonance imaging, computed tomography, and positron emission tomography. "Advanced imaging" does not include X-ray, ultrasound, and fluoroscopy and does not include imaging services performed for purposes of radiation therapy treatment planning or in conjunction with an interventional radiological procedure or nuclear medicine other than positron emission tomography.*

(g) The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply to cardiac rehabilitation services provided by a licensee or by a suitably trained individual under the direct or general supervision of a licensee, if the services are provided to patients meeting the criteria for Medicare reimbursement for the services.

(h) The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply if a licensee is in the office of a group practice and refers a person for services or goods specified in Section 650.01 to a multispecialty clinic, as defined in subdivision (l) of Section 1206 of the Health and Safety Code.

(i) The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply to health care services provided to an enrollee of a health care service plan licensed pursuant to the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975 (Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code).

(j) The prohibition of Section 650.01 shall not apply to a request by a pathologist for clinical diagnostic laboratory tests and pathological examination services, a request by a radiologist for diagnostic radiology services, or a request by a radiation oncologist for radiation therapy if those services are furnished by, or under the supervision of, the pathologist, radiologist, or radiation oncologist pursuant to a consultation requested by another physician.

(k) This section shall not apply to referrals for services that are described in and covered by Sections 139.3 and 139.31 of the Labor Code.

SEC. 3. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution.



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

SB-1256 Medical services: credit. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY JUNE 11, 2014

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 29, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013–2014 REGULAR SESSION

SENATE BILL

No. 1256

Introduced by Senator Mitchell

February 21, 2014

An act to *repeal and add* Section ~~654.4~~ to 654.3 of the Business and Professions Code, relating to health care services.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

SB 1256, as amended, Mitchell. Medical services: credit.

Existing law prohibits a healing arts licensee, including physicians and surgeons, psychologists, acupuncturists, optometrists, dentists, podiatrists, and chiropractic practitioners, from referring a person for certain health care services if the licensee has a financial interest, as defined, with the person or entity that receives the referral. Existing law provides specified exemptions from this prohibition. Under existing law, a violation of the provisions governing referrals is a crime.

Existing law prohibits a dentist, or an employee or agent of that dentist, from arranging for or establishing credit extended by a 3rd party for a patient without first providing a written notice and a written treatment plan, as specified. Existing law prohibits a dentist, or employee or agent of a dentist, from charging treatment not yet rendered or costs not yet incurred to an open-end credit extended by a 3rd party that is arranged for or established in the dental office without first providing the patient with specified information regarding the treatment and services to be rendered and ensuring the patient's receipt of the treatment plan. A person who willfully violates these provisions is subject to specified civil liability.

This bill would ~~similarly delete those provisions pertaining to a dentist or an employee or agent of a dentist, and instead would~~ prohibit a healing arts licensee, or an employee or agent of that licensee, including a dentist, from arranging for or establishing credit or a loan extended by a 3rd party for a patient without first providing a written printed notice or electronic notice, as specified, and a written treatment plan, and would prohibit that arrangement or establishment of credit or a loan with regard to a patient who has been administered or is under the influence of general anesthesia, conscious sedation, or nitrous oxide. The bill would prohibit a healing arts licensee, or employee or agent of a licensee, from charging treatment not yet rendered or costs not yet incurred to an open-end credit extended by a 3rd party that is arranged for or established in the licensee's office without first providing the patient with specified information regarding the treatment and services to be

rendered and ensuring the patient's receipt of the treatment plan. The bill would require a healing arts licensee to refund to the lender any payment received for treatment that has not been rendered or costs that have not been incurred, as specified, within 15 business days upon the patient's request. The bill would provide that a person who willfully violates these provisions is subject to specified civil liability.

Because a violation of these provisions would be a crime, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: yes

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. *Section 654.3 of the Business and Professions Code is repealed.*

~~654.3.(a)A dentist, or an employee or agent of a dentist, shall not charge treatment or costs to an open end credit, that is extended by a third party and that is arranged for or established in a dental office, before the date upon which the treatment is rendered or costs are incurred, without first providing the patient a list of the treatment and services to be rendered, the estimated costs of the treatment and services, and which treatment and services are being charged in advance of rendering or incurring of costs, and ensuring that the patient has received the treatment plan required by subdivision (d).~~

~~(b)A dentist shall, within 15 business days of a patient's request, refund to the lender any payment received through credit extended by a third party that is arranged for or established in a dental office for treatment that has not been rendered or costs that have not been incurred.~~

~~(c)A dentist, or an employee or agent of that dentist, shall not arrange for or establish credit extended by a third party for a patient without first providing the following written notice, on one page in at least 14 point type, and obtaining a signature from the patient:~~

~~"Credit for Dental Services~~

~~The attached application and information is for a credit card/line of credit or loan to help you finance your dental treatment. You should know that:~~

~~You are applying for a _____ credit card/line of credit or a _____ loan for \$_____.~~

~~You do not have to apply for the credit card/line of credit or loan. You may pay your dentist for dental treatment in another manner.~~

~~This credit card/line of credit or loan is not a payment plan with the dental office; it is credit with [name of company issuing the credit card/line of credit or loan]. Your dentist does not work for this company.~~

~~Before applying for this credit card/line of credit or loan, you have the right to a written treatment plan from your dentist that includes the anticipated treatment to be provided and the estimated costs of each service.~~

~~If you are approved for a credit card/line of credit, your dentist can only charge treatment and lab costs to that credit card/line of credit when you get the treatment or the dentist incurs costs unless your dentist has first given you a list of treatments that you are paying for in advance and the cost for each treatment or service.~~

~~You have the right to receive a credit to your credit card/line of credit or loan account refunded for any costs charged to the credit card/line of credit or loan for treatment that has not been rendered or costs that your dentist has not incurred. Your dentist must refund the amount of the charges to the lender within 15 business days of your request, after which the lender will credit your account.~~

~~Please read carefully the terms and conditions of this credit card/line of credit or loan, including any promotional offers.~~

~~You may be required to pay interest on the amount charged to the credit card/line of credit or the amount of the loan. If you miss a payment or do not pay on time, you may have to pay a penalty and/or a higher interest rate.~~

~~If you do not pay the money that you owe the company that provides you with a credit card/line of credit or loan, your missed payments can appear on your credit report and could hurt your credit rating. You could also be sued.~~

[Patient's Signature]"

~~(d)A dentist shall give a patient a written treatment plan prior to arranging for or establishing credit extended by a third party. The treatment plan shall include each anticipated service to be provided and the estimated cost of each service. If a patient is covered by a private or government dental benefit plan or dental insurance, from which the dentist takes assignment of benefits, the treatment plan shall indicate the patient's private or government estimated share of cost for each service. If the dentist does not take assignment of benefits from a patient's dental benefit plan or insurance, the treatment plan shall indicate that the treatment may or may not be covered by a patient's dental benefit or insurance plan, and that the patient has the right to confirm dental benefit or insurance information from the patient's plan, insurer, or employer before beginning treatment.~~

~~(e)A dentist, or an employee or agent of that dentist, shall not arrange for or establish credit extended by a third party for a patient with whom the dentist, or an employee or agent of that dentist, communicates primarily in a language other than English that is one of the Medi-Cal threshold languages, unless the written notice information required by subdivision (c) is also provided in that language.~~

~~(f)A dentist, or an employee or agent of that dentist, shall not arrange for or establish credit that is extended by a third party for a patient who has been administered or is under the influence of general anesthesia, conscious sedation, or nitrous oxide.~~

~~(g)A patient who suffers any damage as a result of the use or employment by any person of a method, act, or practice that willfully violates this section may seek the relief provided by Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 1780) of Title 1.5 of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code.~~

~~(h)The rights, remedies, and penalties established by this article are cumulative, and shall not supersede the rights, remedies, or penalties established under other laws.~~

~~(i)For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:~~

~~(1)"Dentist" includes, but is not limited to, a dental corporation, as defined in Section 1800.~~

~~(2)"Open-end credit" means credit extended by a creditor under a plan in which the creditor reasonably contemplates repeated transactions, the creditor may impose a finance charge from time to time on an outstanding unpaid balance, and the amount of credit that may be extended to the debtor during the term of the plan (up to any limit set by the creditor) is generally made available to the extent that any outstanding balance is repaid.~~

~~(3)"Patient" includes, but is not limited to, the patient's parent or other legal representative.~~

SEC. 2. *Section 654.3 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:*

654.3. *(a) For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:*

(1) "Licensee" means an individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, limited liability company, or cooperative association licensed under this division or under any initiative act or division referred to in this division.

(2) "Licensee's office" means either of the following:

(A) An office of a licensee in solo practice.

(B) An office in which services or goods are personally provided by the licensee or by employees in that office, or personally by independent contractors in that office, in accordance with law. Employees and independent contractors shall be licensed or certified when licensure or certification is required by law.

(3) "Open-end credit" means credit extended by a creditor under a plan in which the creditor reasonably contemplates repeated transactions, the creditor may impose a finance charge from time to time on an outstanding unpaid balance, and the amount of credit that may be extended to the debtor during the term of the plan, up to any limit set by the creditor, is generally made available to the extent that any outstanding balance is repaid.

(4) "Patient" includes, but is not limited to, the patient's parent or other legal representative.

(b) It is unlawful for a licensee, or employee or agent of that licensee, to charge treatment or costs to an open-end credit or loan, that is extended by a third party and that is arranged for, or established in, that licensee's office, before the date upon which the treatment is rendered or costs are incurred, without first providing the patient with a treatment plan, as required by subdivision (e) and a list of which treatment and services are being charged in advance of rendering or incurring of costs.

(c) A licensee shall, within 15 business days of a patient's request, refund to the lender any payment received through credit or a loan extended by a third party that is arranged for, or established in, that licensee's office for treatment that has not been rendered or costs that have not been incurred.

(d) A licensee, or an employee or agent of that licensee, shall not arrange for or establish credit or a loan extended by a third party for a patient without first providing the following written or electronic notice, on one page or screen, respectively, in at least 14-point type, and obtaining a signature from the patient:

"Credit or Loan for Medical Services

The attached application and information is for a credit card/line of credit or loan to help you finance your medical treatment. You should know that:

You are applying for a ____ credit card/line of credit or a ____ loan for \$____.

You do not have to apply for the credit card/line of credit or loan. You may pay your medical provider for treatment in another manner.

This credit card/line of credit or loan is not a payment plan with the provider's office; it is credit with, or a loan made by, [name of company issuing the credit card/line of credit or loan]. Your medical provider does not work for this company.

Before applying for this credit card/line of credit or loan, you have the right to a written treatment plan from your medical provider that includes the anticipated treatment to be provided and the estimated costs of each service.

If you are approved for a credit card/line of credit or loan, your medical provider can only charge treatment and laboratory costs to that credit card/line of credit or loan when you get the treatment or the medical provider incurs costs unless your medical provider has first given you a list of treatments that you are paying for in advance and the cost for each treatment or service.

You have the right to receive a credit to your credit card/line of credit or loan account refunded for any costs charged to the credit card/line of credit or loan for treatment that has not been rendered or costs that your medical provider has not incurred. Your medical provider must refund the amount of the charges to the lender within 15 business days of your request, after which the lender will credit your account.

Please read carefully the terms and conditions of this credit card/line of credit or loan, including any promotional offers.

You may be required to pay interest rates on the amount charged to the credit card/line of credit or the amount of the loan. If you miss a payment or do not pay on time, you may have to pay a penalty on the entire cost of your procedure and a higher interest rate.

You may use this credit card/line of credit or loan for payments toward subsequent medical services.

If you do not pay the money that you owe the company that provides you with a credit card/line of credit or loan, your missed payments can appear on your credit report and could hurt your credit rating. You could also be sued.

[Patient's Signature]"

(e) Prior to arranging for or establishing credit or a loan extended by a third party, a licensee shall give a patient a written treatment plan. The treatment plan shall include each anticipated service to be provided and the estimated cost of each service. If a patient is covered by a private or government medical benefit plan or medical insurance, from which the licensee takes assignment of benefits, the treatment plan shall indicate the patient's private or government-estimated share of cost for each service. If the licensee does not take assignment of benefits from a patient's medical benefit plan or insurance, the treatment plan shall indicate that the treatment may or may not be covered by a patient's medical benefit or insurance plan, and that the patient has the right to confirm medical benefit or insurance information from the patient's plan, insurer, or employer before beginning treatment.

(f) A licensee, or an employee or agent of that licensee, shall not arrange for or establish credit or a loan extended by a third party for a patient with whom the licensee, or an employee or agent of that licensee, communicates primarily in a language other than English that is one of the Medi-Cal threshold languages, unless the written notice information required by subdivision (d) is also provided in that language.

(g) A licensee, or an employee or agent of that licensee, shall not arrange for or establish credit or a loan that is extended by a third party for a patient who has been administered or is under the influence of general anesthesia, conscious sedation, or nitrous oxide.

(h) A patient who suffers any damage as a result of the use or employment by any person of a method, act, or practice that willfully violates this section may seek the relief provided by Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 1780) of Title 1.5 of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code.

(i) The rights, remedies, and penalties established by this article are cumulative, and shall not supersede the rights, remedies, or penalties established under other laws.

SEC. 3. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution.

~~SECTION 1. Section 654.4 is added to the Business and Professions Code, to read:~~

~~654.4. (a) For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:~~

~~(1) "Licensee" means an individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, limited liability company, or cooperative association licensed under this division or under any initiative act or division referred to in this division.~~

~~(2) "Licensee's office" means either of the following:~~

~~(A) An office of a licensee in solo practice.~~

~~(B) An office in which services or goods are personally provided by the licensee or by employees in that office, or personally by independent contractors in that office, in accordance with law. Employees and independent contractors shall be licensed or certified when licensure or certification is required by law.~~

~~(3) "Open end credit" means credit extended by a creditor under a plan in which the creditor reasonably contemplates repeated transactions, the creditor may impose a finance charge from time to time on an outstanding unpaid balance, and the amount of credit that may be extended to the debtor during the term of the plan, up to any limit set by the creditor, is generally made available to the extent that any outstanding balance is repaid.~~

~~(4) "Patient" includes, but is not limited to, the patient's parent or other legal representative.~~

~~(b) It is unlawful for a licensee to charge treatment or costs to an open end credit, that is extended by a third party and that is arranged for, or established in, that licensee's office, before the date upon which the treatment is rendered or costs are incurred, without first providing the patient a list of the treatment and services to be rendered, the estimated costs of the treatment and services, and which treatment and services~~

nee more



California
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION

SB-1445 Developmental services: regional centers: individual program plans: telehealth. (2013-2014)

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 10, 2014

AMENDED IN SENATE MARCH 25, 2014

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE— 2013-2014 REGULAR SESSION

SENATE BILL

No. 1445

Introduced by Senator Evans

February 21, 2014

An act to amend Section 4512 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, relating to developmental services.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

SB 1445, as amended, Evans. Developmental services: regional centers: individual program plans: telehealth.

Under existing law, the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act, the State Department of Developmental Services contracts with regional centers to provide services and supports to individuals with developmental disabilities. The services and supports to be provided to a regional center consumer are contained in an individual program plan, developed in accordance with prescribed requirements, and may include, but are not limited to, diagnosis, treatment, personal care, information and referral services, ~~and~~ counseling, *and specialized medical and dental care.*

This bill would include telehealth services and supports ~~among the services and supports as part of the specialized medical and dental care that is~~ authorized to be included ~~as part of~~ in an individual program plan.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: yes Local Program: no

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 4512 of the Welfare and Institutions Code is amended to read:

4512. As used in this division:

(a) "Developmental disability" means a disability that originates before an individual attains 18 years of age; continues, or can be expected to continue, indefinitely; and constitutes a substantial disability for that individual. As defined by the Director of Developmental Services, in consultation with the Superintendent of Public Instruction, this term shall include intellectual disability, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, and autism. This term shall also include disabling conditions found to be closely related to intellectual disability or to require treatment similar to that required for individuals with an intellectual disability, but shall not include other handicapping conditions that are solely physical in nature.

(b) "Services and supports for persons with developmental disabilities" means specialized services and supports or special adaptations of generic services and supports directed toward the alleviation of a developmental disability or toward the social, personal, physical, or economic habilitation or rehabilitation of an individual with a developmental disability, or toward the achievement and maintenance of independent, productive, and normal lives. The determination of which services and supports are necessary for each consumer shall be made through the individual program plan process. The determination shall be made on the basis of the needs and preferences of the consumer or, when appropriate, the consumer's family, and shall include consideration of a range of service options proposed by individual program plan participants, the effectiveness of each option in meeting the goals stated in the individual program plan, and the cost-effectiveness of each option. Services and supports listed in the individual program plan may include, but are not limited to, ~~telehealth services and support, as defined in Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code,~~ diagnosis, evaluation, treatment, personal care, day care, domiciliary care, special living arrangements, physical, occupational, and speech therapy, training, education, supported and sheltered employment, mental health services, recreation, counseling of the individual with a developmental disability and of his or her family, protective and other social and sociolegal services, information and referral services, follow-along services, adaptive equipment and supplies, advocacy assistance, including self-advocacy training, facilitation and peer advocates, assessment, assistance in locating a home, child care, behavior training and behavior modification programs, camping, community integration services, community support, daily living skills training, emergency and crisis intervention, facilitating circles of support, habilitation, homemaker services, infant stimulation programs, paid roommates, paid neighbors, respite, short-term out-of-home care, social skills training, specialized medical and dental care, *including telehealth services and support, as defined in Section 2290.5 of the Business and Professions Code,* supported living arrangements, technical and financial assistance, travel training, training for parents of children with developmental disabilities, training for parents with developmental disabilities, vouchers, and transportation services necessary to ensure delivery of services to persons with developmental disabilities. Nothing in this subdivision is intended to expand or authorize a new or different service or support for any consumer unless that service or support is contained in his or her individual program plan.

(c) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b), for any organization or agency receiving federal financial participation under the federal Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000, *Chapter 144 (commencing with Section 15001) of Title 42 of the United States Code*, as amended, "developmental disability" and "services for persons with developmental disabilities" mean the terms as defined in the federal act to the extent required by federal law.

(d) "Consumer" means a person who has a disability that meets the definition of developmental disability set forth in subdivision (a).

(e) "Natural supports" means personal associations and relationships typically developed in the community that enhance the quality and security of life for people, including, but not limited to, family relationships, friendships reflecting the diversity of the neighborhood and the community, associations with fellow students or employees in regular classrooms and workplaces, and associations developed through participation in clubs, organizations, and other civic activities.

(f) "Circle of support" means a committed group of community members, who may include family members, meeting regularly with an individual with developmental disabilities in order to share experiences, promote autonomy and community involvement, and assist the individual in establishing and maintaining natural supports. A circle of support generally includes a plurality of members who neither provide nor receive services or supports for persons with developmental disabilities and who do not receive payment for participation in the circle of support.

(g) "Facilitation" means the use of modified or adapted materials, special instructions, equipment, or personal assistance by an individual, such as assistance with communications, that will enable a consumer to understand and participate to the maximum extent possible in the decisions and choices that ~~effect~~ affect his or her life.

(h) "Family support services" means services and supports that are provided to a child with developmental disabilities or his or her family and that contribute to the ability of the family to reside together.

(i) "Voucher" means any authorized alternative form of service delivery in which the consumer or family member is provided with a payment, coupon, chit, or other form of authorization that enables the consumer or family member to choose his or her own service provider.

(j) "Planning team" means the individual with developmental disabilities, the parents or legally appointed guardian of a minor consumer or the legally appointed conservator of an adult consumer, the authorized representative, including those appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 4548 and subdivision (e) of Section 4705, one or more regional center representatives, including the designated regional center service coordinator pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 4640.7, any individual, including a service provider, invited by the consumer, the parents or legally appointed guardian of a minor consumer or the legally appointed conservator of an adult consumer, or the authorized representative, including those appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 4548 and subdivision (e) of Section 4705, and including a minor's, dependent's, or ward's court-appointed developmental services decisionmaker appointed pursuant to Section 319, 361, or 726.

(k) "Stakeholder organizations" means statewide organizations representing the interests of consumers, family members, service providers, and statewide advocacy organizations.

(l) "Substantial disability" means the existence of significant functional limitations in three or more of the following areas of major life activity, as determined by a regional center, and as appropriate to the age of the person:

- (1) Self-care.
- (2) Receptive and expressive language.
- (3) Learning.
- (4) Mobility.
- (5) Self-direction.
- (6) Capacity for independent living.

(7) Economic self-sufficiency.

Any reassessment of substantial disability for purposes of continuing eligibility shall utilize the same criteria under which the individual was originally made eligible.

(m) "Native language" means the language normally used or the preferred language identified by the individual and, when appropriate, his or her parent, legal guardian or conservator, or authorized representative.